MAY 17 2019

The Honorable Penny Schwinn
Commissioner of Education
Tennessee Department of Education
Andrew Johnson Tower, 9™ Floor
710 James Robertson Parkway
Nashville, TN 37243-0375

Dear Commissioner Schwinn:

I am writing in response to the Tennessee Department of Education (TDOE) request on December 19,
2018, for an extension to its waiver of section 1111{(b}2)}D)(1)(I) of the Elementary and Secondary
Education Act of 1965 (ESEA), as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), of the
requirement that a State may not assess using an alternate assessment aligned with alternate academic
achievement standards (AA-AAAS) more than 1.0 percent of the total number of students in the State
who are assessed in reading/language arts, mathematics and science. TDOE requested this waiver
because, based on State data for the 2017-2018 school year, the TDOE has concluded that it will need to
assess more than 1.0 percent of students using an AA-AAAS in the 2018-2019 school year.

After reviewing TDOE's request, [ am granting, pursuant to my authority under section 8401(b) of the
ESEA, for school year 2018-2019, a one-year extension of the State’s waiver of section

111 1{b)(2)(D)(i)(I) of the ESEA so that the State may assess with an AA-AAAS more than 1.0 percent
of the total number of students in the State who are assessed in reading/language arts and mathematics.
TDOE demonstrated substantial progress in camrying out the plan that was submitted when the State
initially requested this waiver a year ago. However, [ am denying TDOE’s request for a waiver of
section 1111(b)}2YD)(1)XI) of the ESEA to assess with an AA-AAAS more than 1.0 percent of the total
number of students in the State who are assessed in science.

As part of this waiver for reading/language arts and mathematics, TDOE assured that it:

e Will continue to meet all other requirements of section 1111 of the ESEA and implementing
regulations with respect to all State-determined academic standards and assessments, including
reporting student achievement and school performance, disaggregated by subgroups, to parents
and the public.

e Assessed in the prior school year (2017-2018) at least 95 percent of all students and 95 percent
of students with disabilities who are enrolled in grades for which an assessment is required in
reading/language arts and mathematics.

e Will require that a local educational agency (LEA) submit information justifying the need of the
LEA to assess more than 1.0 percent of its assessed students in any such subject with an AA-
AAAS.
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» Will provide appropriate oversight of an LEA that is required to submit such information to the
State, and it will make such information publicly available.

¢ Will venify that each LEA that is required to submit such information to the State is following all
State guidelines in 34 CFR §200.6(d) (with the exception of incorporating principles of universal
design) and will address any subgroup disproportionality in the percentage of students taking an
AA-AAAS.

e Will implement, consistent with the plan submitted in Tennessee’s waiver request, the system
improvements and monitor future administrations to avoid exceeding the 1.0 percent cap.

Please note that [ am granting this extension despite the fact that Tennessee has yet to demonstrate
progress in reducing the percentage of students taking an AA-AAAS in each subject. Given the
significant work underway, I expect to see the results of these efforts in the 2018-2019 school year and
beyond. Beginning next year, any request for an extension of this waiver will be contingent on both
continued progress implementing your plan and progress in reducing the percentage of students taking
the AA-AAAS. Tennessee has some of the highest rates of AA-AAAS participation in the nation.
Because of these high rates of AA-AAAS participation, [ expect to see the continued efforts to
substantially reduce these rates in the 2018-2019 school year and beyond.

In addition, I want to remind you of the requirement in 34 CFR §200.6(c)(3)(iv) that the State must
make publicly available the information submitted by an LEA justifying the need of the LEA to assess
more than 1.0 percent of its students on the AA-AAAS, provided that such information dogs not reveal
personally identifiable information about an individual student. I also encourage you to make available
your State’s plan and timeline and your progress to date in reducing the percentage of students taking
the AA-AAAS.

Regarding science, I am denying TDOE’s request for a waiver of section 1111{b}2)(D)(i)(I) of the
ESEA to assess with an AA-AAAS more than 1.0 percent of the total nuinber of students in the State
who are assessed in science. My reason for denial of the request is that TDOE did not meet the
requirement in 34 CFR §200.6(c)(4) that, in order to be eligible for such a waiver, the State must assess
at least 95 percent of all students and 95 percent of children with disabilitics on the science assessments.
In 2017-2018, TDOE assessed less than 95 percent of all students and Iess than 95 percent of children
with disabilities on the science assessment.

If the data TDOE previously reported are erroneous and TDOE can demonstrate that it assessed at least
95 percent of all students and 95 percent of children with disabilities on the science assessments, TDOE
may revise its waiver request, consistent with section 8401(b)(4)(B)(ii) of the ESEA, to meet the
requirements under sections 8401(b)(1)(C) and (F) and resubmit the revised waiver request to address
how it has met the requirements in 34 CFR §200.6(c)(4), including the requirement in 34 CFR
§200.6(c)(4)(ii)(B) that the State has measured the achievement of at least 95 percent of all students and
95 percent of students in the children with disabilities subgroup under section 1111{c)(2)(C) of the
ESEA who are enrolled in grades for which the State is required to administer statewide assessments. If
TDOE decides to resubmit, it must do so no later than 60 days from the date of this letter.
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1 appreciate the work you are doing to improve your schools and provide a high-quality education for
your students. If you have any questions, please contact my staff at: Tennessee. OESE(@ed.gov.

Sincerely,

/
:éu:wDVI‘
Frank T. Brogan

Assistant Secretary
for Elementary and Secondary Education

cc: Eve Camey, Office of Consolidated Planning and Monitoring




































In the event the decision to place the student on the AA-AAAS was not made pursuant to the applicable
regulations and the Alternate Assessment Participation Guidelines, the TDOE will direct the LEA to reconsider
the student’s eligibility for the AA-AAAS,

C. Procedures for States that seek a waiver of the 1.0 percent cap on participation on an AA-AAAS.
States that anticipate that they will need a waiver from the 1.0 percent cap on AA-AAAS
participation should submit the request to the Department at leost 90 doys prior to the beginning
of the testing window for the AA-AAA!  Iach waiver request must be made in accordance with
ESEA section 8401(b)(3), which explains that a State must provide the public and any interested
LEA in the State with notice and a reasonable opportunity to comment and provide input on the
request, in the manner in which the State customarily provides similar notice and opportunity to
comment to the public.

In its request, the State must include;
(i} Information regording each requirement in 34 CFR 200.6(c)(4) (see section B), ond

(fi) Evidence that the State provided notice and a reasonable opportunity for the public and LEAs
to comment and provide input on the request. This evidence must include:

a. Evidence or a description of the manner in which that the State provided such notice to the
public and interested LEAS;

The TDOE provided netice to the public and interested LEAS on its request for a waiver on the number of
students participating in the AA-AAAS, This information was posted to the TDOE website, shared via TDOE
newsletters for special educaticon directors, directors of schools, and assessment cocrdinators, and
disseminated via email te advocacy groups and partners.

b. Capies of all comments that the State received from LEAs in respanse to this notice, with a
description of how the Stote addressed the comments; and

During the public comment pericd, the department did not receive any written comments.

¢. Evidence that the State also provided notice and a reasonable opportunity to comment to
the public and LEAs in the manner in which the State customarily provides similar notice
and apportunity to comment.

The TDOE sought public comment on its request for a waiver on the number of students participating in the
AA-AAAS. The notice for public comment was posted to the TDOE website, shared via TDOE newsletters for
special education directors, directors of schools, and assessment coordinators, and disseminated via email
to advocacy groups and partners. The notice for public comment can be found in Attachrment 1.

The TDOE believes its plan of:
e identifying LEAs with more than 1.0 percent of its students taking the AA-AAAS;
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